
 

 
 

  

 

Rittman City Council Met in 

REGULAR MEETING 

on Monday, October 22, 2012 at 7:00 p.m. 

 
Members Present:  Darrell Carey, Steve Johnson, Richard Lapehn, Glen Russell  

        and Rick Hanlon 

Members Absent:   Lynn Beaumont 

Presiding:         Mayor William Robertson 

  

Invocation was given by Barbara Brooks, clerk followed by the Pledge of Allegiance 

 
Approval of Minutes – October 8, 2012 

Carey so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 
 

Workshop 

 

a. Discussion of a Storm Drainage Study 

City Manager Boggs indicated from the concerns voiced at the last meeting the city crews 

performed some procedures to try to correct the issues although he believed they still have more work 

to do. He advised the Service Director is available for any questions. 

 Russell advised he believed at the last meeting they discussed the drain coming out of the 

valley on Fairlawn and when it comes out to the street he inquired as to where that drain go from 

Liberty Street. 

Dave Simpson, Service Director advised in Farlow’s yard on the west side of Fairlawn 

Avenue is a large junction box and there was a 36” pipe that comes in pretty much straight and there 

is an old 18” that goes toward Main Street out from there. He advised the large 30” goes over to 

Liberty and goes down and crosses the post office alley and down to State Street and turns left (north) 

until about 100’ or so and joins right back up beside the 18”. Simpson advised the 18” runs down 

between the houses and churches and so on right across from Main Street and it actually runs in the 

yard of the house just north of Wilde Corporation office. He advised they (property owners) had to 

replace a lot of the pipe several years ago. Simpson advised once it (pipe) gets to State St. they join 

into another big junction box and there is a 48” that comes out of that. He advised when we were 

investigating all the storm sewers after two meetings ago, all of the sewers on State Street and coming 

down to State Street were clean. Simpson advised they were in there with flashlights and everything 

was clean. He advised however, the 48” from the junction box east of State Street from where it 

outlets into an open ditch east of Seneca Street had a lot of gravel in it and that was what they are 

working on cleaning out now.  

 Russell inquired if there is a line going from Fairlawn or Sunset running over to Home Street.  

 Simpson advised no. 

 Russell advised several years ago when we would get a heavy rain they used to have the fire 

department come down and pump water out of one of the drains, but he doesn’t know if they do that 

anymore. He advised he didn’t know if that was because there has been an improvement or if they 

were doing it to try to avoid flooding in the homes.  

 Simpson advised years ago the sanitary sewer, before the new interceptor sewer went in, 

would surcharge the storm water at Home and Main Streets. He advised they would take a 6” pump to 

that location when it was raining heavy and pump the storm water out of that sanitary manhole and 

the creek. Simpson advised he believed that was what Mr. Russell was remembering.  

 Russell advised yes and he believed there at Wayne Savings it used to get flooded in the 

street in that area and he felt it still was (a problem). He advised he didn’t know how big of a line or if 

it comes down into the parking lot (at the shopping center) or where that water goes. Russell advised 

for some reason there is a lot of water that stops there by Wayne Savings. 

 Simpson advised there are two catch basins on each side of Main Street by Wayne Savings 

and the shopping center and there was one line that runs down the shopping center’s side and empties 

into Landis Ditch and he believed it was a 15” although it could be an 18”. He advised it was 

designed to handle a 5-yr storm and that was what all of the storm sewer design criteria’s were was a 

5-yr storm. Simpson advised when they get a 25-yr storm the water was going to backup in the street 

regardless of how clean the sewer is because it would not take in that much water.  

 Russell inquired regarding the gully that usually floods on Fairlawn if there was some way to 

put some heavy wire in the valley to catch the debris and then maybe it wouldn’t flood as fast. 

 Simpson advised we do get some leaves and other debris coming down through there, but 

when that area plugs up it overflows back into the gully and when it washes over the land then State 



Street benefits from that because they don’t get that big surcharge of water and while it messes 

everyone up on Fairlawn and Main Street and it was a Catch 22 because when it's wide open State 

Street gets hammered and when it’s plugged up a little bit then Fairlawn gets hammered. 

 Russell inquired if there was some heavy wire that could be placed above that to catch some 

of that debris when it comes down. He advised the water would still come through and it would kind 

of hold some of the debris back and he felt it wouldn’t flood as fast. 

 Simpson advised they used to have a chain link fence of 50’ -100’ along where the pipe is 

located years ago and it had a piece of railroad rail across the top and sign posts driven and it was a 

chain link fence like you would see in a ball park. He advised all it did was stop the rock ahead of the 

pipe and when the water came down it eroded out around and all the leaves and debris actually got 

through anyway. Simpson advised it didn’t serve the purpose that he (Russell) is thinking it would.  

 Hanlon advised he felt it would work if it was maintained after every rain.  

 Simpson agreed. 

 Russell advised where they (city crews) dredged the ditch on Medina Street and Seneca Street 

actually looks pretty good. He advised tell your crew they did a good job and we’ll see what happens 

at the next good rain. 

 Simpson advised they dug a pretty deep hole right past the end of the pipe and with just the 

couple of rains they’ve had it has washed a lot of gravel out and we’ll continue to go with the 

backhoe and get it out and keep it clean so we can let the rains help us and when we have time we’ll 

go down and “jet” it. He advised he believed their efforts were in the right direction.  

 Johnson inquired if it was a 48” pipe that comes into the ditch. 

 Simpson advised yes. 

 Johnson confirmed he said it splits at the Fairlawn gully. He advised one goes straight down 

and one that jogs and the one that jogs is approx. 30” and the other is an 18”. 

 Simpson advised yes and then they come back. 

 Johnson advised then they come back to the same place.  

 Simpson advised he doesn’t know why it was designed with the two elbows in it. 

 Johnson advised it was a bigger restriction.  

 Hanlon inquired if that helped to slow the water flow down and if that was the reason for the 

way it was designed. 

 Simpson advised he doesn’t think that was purpose it was put in that way. He advised when 

the storm hits that 90 (degree angle) it blows the lid off the manhole. Simpson advised it (the water) 

has to go somewhere.  

 Johnson advised in the storm water study they talked about a retention pond at the top and 

bottom and he inquired if there was any talk of changing the way that plumbing is per se coming out 

of there. He advised if it held the water back it would take care of the problem and they would have 

enough capacity there.  

 Simpson advised he wouldn’t say it would take care of the problem, but it would help with 

the normal (size) rains we get, but with a “gully washer” there was only so much those pipes could 

handle. He advised and no there was no proposal to straighten out that 36”. 

 Russell inquired regarding the retention basins at the school as to where that water eventually 

goes. He inquired if it comes down North Street or does it empty into the gully or where does it go. 

 Simpson advised the one at the elementary school comes across Metzger into a 15” storm 

sewer and goes down North Street to just before the Presbyterian church and turns into the ravine that 

crosses Ohio Ave at Fifth Street. 

 Hanlon advised regarding the study they talked about two projects one being retention in the 

gully and the other was the replacement of a pipe on College Street. 

 Boggs advised he was informed by Ken Mann (Utilities Supervisor) that we’ve already 

increased the size of that (pipe) on College Street. He advised he hasn’t had time to pinpoint that 

down yet, but after the other meeting when it was in the paper, he (Mann) told him that (information). 

Boggs advised if that is correct then there are at two things on that list in the study that have been 

completed. He advised they’ve done the Industrial Street waterline and increased the size of the storm 

line on College Street. Boggs advised for the State Street area issues they were going to have to look 

at the retention basin. He advised they were not going to score enough points on Issue 2 grants if it is 

new versus replacement infrastructure. Boggs advised they would probably have to go for the no 

interest loans and possibly look at the storm sewer fee on the water/sewer bill and he has been 

studying that as well. He advised he felt that would be something they would have to address the first 

of the year.  

 Hanlon inquired regarding the storm drains that are on State Street now if they were going 

into the 48” pipe or were they following the pipe that was put in on College Street. 

 Simpson advised there is one catch basin just north of the post office alley that is on the 42” 

after it makes the turn. He advised that is the one everyone talks about during the storm. Simpson 

advised all the other basins on State Street go into a different storm sewer system.  

 Russell inquired if there was storm water leaking into the sewer system causing a backup in 

the homes.  



 Simpson advised there is foundation footer drains tied into the sanitary. He advised that was 

the way it was done back when and the people did not switch them over to the storm system and it 

contributes to the problem.  

 Russell inquired as to how you could tell if they are not hooked in. 

 Boggs advised as part of the capital improvements for next year they plan on running the 

cameras in the sanitary sewers to see if there are problems so they can do preventative maintenance 

instead of just crisis management maintenance. He advised they would then be able to mark those 

problem areas. Boggs advised they would decide from there how it would be addressed in discussions 

with Council. He advised they were talking in all likelihood probably 90% of the homeowners, in that 

area, are not tied in legally and that was going to have to be rectified. Boggs advised maybe they 

should handle it like a street or sidewalk (assessment) project, but it was going to have to be 

addressed.  

 Russell inquired regarding the drainage under the foundations of the houses if it goes out to 

the storm sewer. 

 Simpson advised they are supposed to. 

 Russell inquired if we run a camera could you tell they are (tied-in) correctly. 

 Hanlon advised it could be dye test it where the downspouts are (located) by pouring dye in 

there diluted with water and check the sewers and see if the dye came through into the sewer. 

 Simpson advised he heard years ago of the city putting a smoke bomb in the sanitary sewer 

line and blow a fan and when the smoke comes out the downspouts there was (an illegal tie-in) a 

problem. 

 Hanlon inquired regarding preventative maintenance if there is any type of schedule now to 

check inputs or outputs of pipes to see if they are kept clean.  

 Simpson advised if there is the potential for a lot of rain he has the crew check the regular 

trouble spots on catch basins in town so they are cleaned out by the Ohio and Fifth Street gully and 

Douglas Dr. in the dip by the battlefield. He advised there were numerous places and all his guys 

know where the trouble spots are and if they are forecasting rain then they go out and clean off the 

tops of the catch basins. Simpson advised if someone see anything that was obviously plugged to let 

them know and they add it to their list to get it cleaned out and taken care of. He advised as far as 

scheduled maintenance, no.  

 Hanlon inquired what about the detention basins like in the various developments if we (city) 

are responsible for the one at the school.  

 Simpson advised no. 

 Hanlon advised he just wondered if they are checked to be sure the input was not plugged and 

hitting the overflow because then it doesn’t detain.  

 Simpson advised they check all of them (they’re responsible for) especially the ones that have 

given us trouble in the past like on Louise St. and one the Diane St. requires regular maintenance. He 

advised after every three or four storms they have to go and make sure it’s open and draining 

properly. Simpson advised the one on Overlook really doesn’t present any problems. He advised they 

go around and make sure the silt hasn’t accumulated. Simpson advised the ones on Joshua and 

Matthew weren’t really a problem, but they do try to check them.  

 Boggs advised the other thing he asked was for the Utilities Director (Metcalf) to work with 

the Service Director (Simpson) after a heavy rain and they get all that mud on the street and sidewalk 

was to help in washing that mud away in those problem areas on State St. He advised hopefully we 

can do that until they can possibly get some of this fixed. Boggs advised they would probably have 

(issues) again before they can implement some of the other (planned improvements).  

 Simpson advised he wanted to go over the storm drainage study a little bit with Council and 

what has been completed since 1994. He advised one project was listed at $566,000 and started at 

River Styx and came all the way to Sheldon Street and went from an 18” pipe to a 48” pipe and it 

used to flood every time it rained a little bit on Medina, College and Seneca Streets and that project 

used Issue 2 money. He advised the West Hill culvert was severely deteriorated and they lined it and 

it went from a 48” down to about it 46” because of the lining, but they regained its integrity and 

backfilled the voids in the hill above it and that was with city funds. Simpson advised Thonen Street 

to the shopping center, used 2 different CDBG grants, they installed a new line all the way from north 

of Thonen Street down through the back yards across Beech Street to the shopping center to Landis 

Ditch. He advised the Salt Street and Wright Street storm sewer was a $382,000 Issue 2 project and 

they replaced the 18” pipe with 36” and actually 42” going across the Morton Salt parking lot to the 

railroad tracks. Simpson advised he was giving the projected numbers as he didn’t look at the bid 

numbers. He advised from this 1994 study over $2 million dollars of these improvements have been 

completed of the $5.1 million listed projects. Simpson advised they have worked at getting the 

problems taken care of and it wasn’t that they paid to have the study done and then never did any of 

the recommended improvements. He indicated Council, the City Manager and the Service Director 

decide what projects for which those Issue 2 funds and CDBG funds are designated. 

 Mayor Robertson reminded property owners when they rake leaves to place them on the tree 

lawn and not in the street so they don’t clog the storm sewers and cause more problems in the 

process. He indicated the leaf pickup schedule has been posted on the city website or can be picked 

up at City Hall. 



  

Citizens Forum 

 Jack Meadows of N. State St. advised the guys did a good job cleaning out the ditch he wants 

both Ken Mann and George Heater to know he spoke for them. He advised down in front of Maslak’s 

on State St there were lids on some drains with little round holes in them and then they have lids with 

a (square hole). Meadows advised it rained the other day and he walked from his house and scraped 

the leaves off of that (drain lid) so the water could flow down through those little round holes. He 

advised but the square ones the leaves fold up and go down in and he wanted to make sure they knew 

those lids (square ones) were not good for that (purpose). Meadows advised his neighbor had water in 

his basement and he is straight across the road from his house and he (Meadows) didn’t have any 

water cause it didn’t rain enough. He advised he thinks he (his neighbor across the street) is on the 

small sewer line. He thanked Council for their time. 

   

Old Business 

 None 

 

New Business 

 

 a. Ord. No. 7739 Annual Appropriation Ordinance. An Ordinance of the Council 

of the City of Rittman, Wayne and Medina Counties and State of Ohio, to Make 

Appropriations for Current Expenses and Other Expenditures of the City of Rittman, State of 

Ohio, During the Fiscal Year Ending December 31, 2013 and Declaring an Emergency. First 

Reading. Ord. No. 7739 was read on first reading. Rissland advised last year they changed the one 

section about the contingency funds authorization of City Manager and the Finance Director and 

Council may want to look at that as a change for second reading. Rissland advised right now the way 

it was written it is 2/3 of Council and she believed they made such an amendment last year. Russell 

moved to place on second, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 b. Ord. No. 7740 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Authorizing the Municipal Manager to Accept the Lowest 

and Best Bids for the Furnishing of Commodities for the Year 2013 and Declaring an 

Emergency. First Reading. Ord. No. 7740 was read on first reading. Carey moved to place on 

second, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 c. Ord. No. 7741 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Ohio, 

Authorizing the Municipal Manager to Accept the Best Bids for Employee and Dependent 

Hospitalization, Surgical and Major Medical Coverage for a Period of One (1) Year 

Commencing January 1, 2013 and Declaring an Emergency. First Reading. Ord. No. 7741 was 

read on first reading. Russell moved to place on second, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 d. Ord. No. 7742 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties, Ohio, Amending Ord. No. 7736, Which Accepted the Bid of Karvo Paving of 

Stow, Ohio, for the South Fork Street Improvement Project and Declaring an Emergency. 

Three Readings. Ord. No. 7742 was read on first reading. Carey moved to suspend rules and have 

second and third reading, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. Ord. No. 7742 was read on second 

and third reading. Russell inquired if the additional money they had to use in this price listed. Boggs 

advised yes. Carey moved to adopt, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried.  

 

 e. Ord. No. 7743 An Ordinance of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Amending the Annual Appropriation Ordinance No. 7678, 

As Amended, According to the Attached Sheet(s) and Declaring an Emergency. Three 

Readings. Ord. No. 7743 was read on first reading. Russell moved to suspend the rules and have 

second and third reading, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. Ord. No. 7743 was read on second 

and third reading. Carey moved to adopt, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 f. Res. No. 7744 A Resolution of the Council of the City of Rittman, Wayne and 

Medina Counties and State of Ohio, Authorizing the Finance Director to Make Advances 

and/or Transfers to or from Appropriate Accounts. Three Readings. Res. No. 7744 was read on 

first reading. Russell moved to suspend the rules and have second and third reading, all Yeas on roll 

call and motion carried. Res. No. 7744 was read on second and third reading. Carey moved to adopt, 

all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 g. Motion to Appoint Shaun Dente to the Unexpired Term of Kurt Karhoff to the 

Board of Zoning Appeals Hanlon so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 h. Motion to Approve a Conditional Sign Permit for All Creatures Veterinary 

Clinic on Sheets Rd. Boggs advised Dr. Markley was present if there were any questions for him 



regarding the sign. Lapehn advised according to the drawing presented the sign was going to be 

placed along Ste. Rte. 57 and would be one-sided and would only be viewed from the north. Markley 

advised yes, those driving south would be able to read it since there were trees obstructing the view 

from the other direction. Russell so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 i. Motion to Go Into Executive Session for the Purpose of Discussing a Personnel 

Matter in the Finance Department and Invite the City Manager and the Finance Director - 7:40 

pm Hanlon so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 j. Motion to Come Out of Executive Session - 8:27 pm 

  Russell so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

City Manager’s Remarks 
 City Manager Boggs had no remarks. 

     

Finance Director’s Remarks 
 Finance Director Rissland thanked Council for their time. 

 
Council Remarks 

 Council Member Steve Johnson had no remarks. 

 Council Member Glen Russell had no remarks. 

 Council Member Richard Lapehn had no remarks. 

 Council Member Darrell Carey congratulated Garrick (Di Salvo, Rec Dir) for being selected 

as the “Bright Star 2012” for his service to the Rittman Chamber.  

 Council Member Rick Hanlon congratulated Garrick for the aforementioned award. 

 Mayor William Robertson reminded everyone Thursday, October 25
th
 was the Civic Day 

luncheon at 11:45 am. 

     

Approval of Vouchers 57811 thru 57864 w/Then and Now Certificates  
Carey so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

  

Adjourn: 8:30 p.m. 
Russell so moved, all Yeas on roll call and motion carried. 

 

 

________________________________ 

Mayor 

 

 

__________________________  

Clerk of Council 
 

   

 


